MEMORANDUM

Date:

November 26, 2001

To:

Saundra Taylor

cc:

Lattie Coor



ASU President

From:

Peter Likins



President

Subject:
Domestic Partner Benefits


Thank you for your comprehensive report of 14 November on the issue of domestic partner benefits.


President Coor and I have discussed the desirability of providing domestic partner benefits, but we are more challenged by the issue of feasibility.  Using state funds for this purpose seems problematic at best unless granted that freedom by the State.  Securing the approval of the State Legislature for this purpose seems highly unlikely, and even addressing the question in this forum at a time of budgetary crisis would be dangerous.  Your report says that “it is the opinion of counsel at both this university and ASU that ARS 38-651 may be construed to prohibit state agencies from purchasing health insurance outside the statutory plan with public funds.”  I assure you that it will be so construed by the State Legislature, whatever the ultimate disposition of the matter in the courts, and it is the State Legislature that controls the budget.


It is clear that whatever we might do must have the full understanding and support of the Arizona Board of Regents.


So the question arises: What might we do with ABOR approval that does not involve the expenditure of public funds?


The domestic partner benefit of primary interest is understandably health care, with an annual cost for the University of Arizona estimated at between $255K and $455K/year.  A private endowment of between five and ten million dollars would solve the problem (and optimize the likelihood of ABOR approval), but this might not be more feasible than Legislative approval.  Realistically we would be obliged to rely upon other unrestricted dollars, and ABOR approval might be difficult.
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It does occur to me, however, that the second domestic partner benefit requested by OUTReach might for extraneous reasons soon become feasible.  It asked for “domestic partner and dependent access to the qualified tuition reduction program.”


The memo from David Nix to Sandy Fagan dated 26 August 1999 indicates that fee waivers for employees are governed by ABOR Policy 6-902, which excludes domestic partners and their children.  Such coverage would by David’s analysis have to come from the limited waiver provisions in ABOR policies 4-301 and 4-302.


For reasons unrelated to the domestic partner benefits program, we are planning to propose for ABOR consideration the elimination of the limitations on waiver counts defined by 4-301, 4-302, and related policies, leaving each campus free to incorporate waivers (as tuition revenues foregone) in annual budget proposals.  If this reform is achieved, it will be possible for individual campuses to consider tuition waivers for domestic partners and their children as part of the budget process.  The Regents would then approve these allocations as they approve budget proposals without explicitly voting on domestic partner benefits.


I realize that what I propose is less than “half a loaf,” and perhaps we can do better.  I’m sending President Coor your report with my response, hoping that he’ll be able to offer a strategy for adding healthcare benefits as well.   There is something to be said however for establishing the precedent for domestic partner benefits quietly (but openly) with tuition waivers, taking one modest step in the right direction successfully rather than leaping forward into oblivion.
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